HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 13, 2009
8:35 a. m

8: 35: 06 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stoltze called the House Finance Comm ttee neeting
to order at 8:35 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve M ke Hawker, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Thomas Jr., Vice-Chair
Representative Allan Austerman
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative Anna Faircl ough
Representative Richard Foster
Representative Les Gara
Representati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative Mke Kelly
Represent ati ve Wodi e Sal non

MEMBERS ABSENT

None
ALSO PRESENT

Karen Lidster, Staff, Representative John Coghill; Alice
Edwar ds, Acting Director, Division of Ar Quality,
Depar t ment of Envi r onnent al Conservati on; Kate Troll,
Executive Director, Al aska Conservation Alliance.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Jim Connor, Ar Quality Control, Fairbanks North Star
Bor ough; Nadine Wnters, Presiding Oficer, Fairbanks North
Star Borough Assenbly; Steve Van Sant, State Assessor,
Depart ment of Commrerce, Conmunity and Econom ¢ Devel opnent.

SUMVARY

HB 121 "An Act relating to a nunicipal property tax
credit for an inprovenent that aids in inproving
air quality."
HB 121 was HEARD and HELD in Conmmittee for further
consi derati on.

8.35:16 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 03/13/09 8:35 A M



#hbl121

HOUSE BILL NO 121
"An Act relating to a municipal property tax credit for
an inprovenent that aids in inproving air quality."

8:35:52 AM

KAREN LI DSTER, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE JOHN COGHI LL, read the
foll owi ng statenent:

HB 121 is being proposed to be able to provide the
muni ci palities wth optional tools to create incentives
for individuals to take action that wll inprove air
quality and reduce fuel consunption. Local taxation
policy and discretion is governed by Title 29 of
Al aska Statute. Tax exenptions and tax credits are
only permtted within the authority of this section of
state law. The proposed legislation will expand the
di scretion of municipalities in order to allow by
ordi nance the creation of programs that wll offer tax
credits for actions that the I|ocal governing body
determines wll inprove air quality. The proposed
| anguage requires that weligibility, conditions, and
other criteria for the tax credits be established by
ordinance. This wll create a full range of options
for local nmunicipalities to address their air quality
issues rather than just through restriction and
enf orcenment .

Portions of the Fairbanks North Star Borough were
designated as nonattai nnment for PM.5 by the
(Environnmental Protection Agency) EPA in Decenber 2008.
Based on the requirenents of the Cear Air Act the
state and the borough have three years to devel op an
attainment plan that is designed to bring air quality
into conpliance with federal air standards. It 1is
unquestioned that reduction of the anount of fine
particul ates released into the air by space heating of
resi dences and businesses wll be a conponent of any
attai nnment plan.

The proposed legislation is requested as a fist step in
that process to allow local nunicipalities the |atitude
in developing tax credit prograns to address the
i mportant public health and community conpliance issues
that result frompoor air quality.

8: 38: 08 AM

Ms. Lidster cited representatives from the Fairbanks North
Star Borough, Air Quality Control, Fairbanks North Star
Borough Assenbly, and Alaska Environnental Conservation
staff available to answer questions.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 03/13/09 8:35 A M



8:38:29 AM

ALI CE EDWARDS, ACTING DI RECTOR, DIVISION OF AIR QUALITY,
DEPARTMENT OF ENVI RONMENTAL CONSERVATI ON (DEC) indi cated her
availability to answer questions relating to air quality
i ssues in Fairbanks.

8:39: 01 AM

Representative Fairclough asked for the nunber of testing
stations in Fairbanks. M. Edwards replied that Fairbanks
has one primary air nonitoring station |ocated downtown and
a nunber of additional nonitors, in conjunction with the
Department of Environnmental Conservation, that have been
i npl enented in the borough over the past few years to
nonitor air quality.

8:39:51 AM

Representative Fairclough asked if the violation site was in
the downtown area. Ms. Edwards indicated that was correct.
Representative Fairclough remarked that she has dealt wth
nonattai nnent in the nmunicipality of Anchorage and offered
that downtown air quality may be nore closely affiliated
with cold starts.

8:40: 26 AM

Co- Chair Hawker asked if this bill was point specific for a
problem in Fairbanks. M. Edwards replied that HB 121
focuses on giving Fairbanks additional tools to address fine
particul ate matter problens; Juneau also faces this issue.
Both communities have a variety of sources that contribute
to pollution, but a large part of the problem derives from
space heating or other solid fire fuel heating devices.

8:41:18 AM

JIM CONNOR, AlR QUALITY CONTRO., FAl RBANKS NORTH STAR
BOROUGH, testified via teleconference, indicated he was
avai | abl e for questions.

8:41:49 AM

Representative Fairclough inquired if M. Conner would be
responsi ble for putting together the attainnment plan. M.
Conner indicated he would be working closely with the
Depar t ment of Envi r onnment al Conservati on and t he
Environnmental Protection Agency Region 10 to develop the
attai nnent plan.

8:42: 29 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 03/13/09 8:35 A M



Representative Fairclough asked if he would be the lead in
Fai rbanks. M. Conner replied that he woul d.

8:42:41 AM

Representati ve Gara asked what portion of the pollutants was
generated by autonobiles. M. Conner replied that the study
is continuing on the actual apportionnment between sources of
pollution, but the belief is that autonobiles contribute 5
to 10 percent to the problem space heating conponents
generate around 25 to 30 percent.

8:44: 01 AM

NADI NE W NTERS, PRESID NG OFFI CER, FAI RBANKS NORTH STAR
BOROUGH ASSEMBLY, testified via teleconference, comented
that the borough is in nonattainnment for the PM2.5 and the
borough was trying to reach attainnment while making it as
pai nl ess as possible for residents and busi nesses. The bill
could be used to provide incentives through property tax
credits to change old wood stoves for EPA certified wood
stoves; this may reduce particulate matter by 67 percent.
The situation represents a health issue for residents and a
possi bl e hindrance for future econom c devel opnent. House
Bill 121 provides tools to help the comunity in terns of
econonm ¢ devel opnent, resident health, and to achieve
attainment. Ms. Wnters urged support for HB 121.

8:45:30 AM

Representative Salnon requested nore information on the
types of inprovenents. M. Lidster responded that the
options available to the communities are open for their
determnation on how to best attain the designated air
quality. M. Wnters described wood snoke pollution, a
popular nmethod for heating in Fairbanks, as a ngjor
contributor to the problem The purpose of HB 121 is to give
tax credits for residents to replace their old wood stoves
with EPA certified wood stoves. Tax credits would help
peopl e offset the costs.

8:47:42 AM

Representati ve Sal non agreed Fai rbanks has real problemwth
cold during the wnter; a wood stove in the hone hel ps as
electricity frequently goes out during cold weather.

8:48:32 AM

Representative Fairclough remarked that she was famliar
with nonattainnment during local service in Anchorage, but
she wondered if the inversion affect in Fairbanks prevents
attainment no matter what is attenpted.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 03/13/09 8:35 A M



8:49:10 AM

Ms. Wnters remarked that the PM.5 nonattainnent area
covers a significant part of the borough, not just in the
city. The boundaries extend past Ft. Wainwight to Gold
Stream Representative Fairclough referred to page 1, line
10, “...the credit may be granted for nore than one year.”
She questioned how Fairbanks would inplenment this. M.
Wnters replied that they are waiting on this legislation
before making a final decision, but a consideration is a
dollar for dollar tax credit. She suggested that if it cost
$1500 to replace a wood stove for the EPA certified wood
stove, then there would be a $1500 tax credit.

8:51: 05 AM

Representative Fairclough appreciated the challenged in
Fai r banks, but she noted that in past two years there had
been conversation and publicity about the boroughs ability
to tax in different ways. She wondered, in nmaking a | ocal
decision to inplenment an ordinance, if Fairbanks would take
the financial responsibility and not have a cost return to
the state. Ms. Wnters asserted that Fairbanks woul d accept
that responsibility. She indicated Fairbanks operates under
a tax cap, and it will be painful in the short run, but it
must be done for the health of the residents and future
econoni ¢ devel opnent. Representative Fairclough asked if M.
Wnters knew the costs of the replacenent stoves. M.
Wnters reported that the EPA certified stove would costs
bet ween $1500 and $2500.

8:52:53 AM

Representative Gara questi oned why a wood stove over an oil
heater. Ms. Wnters noted that a cord of wood could be
purchased for around $250 or harvested free in certain
public areas. The nunbers of honmes heating wth wood
increased as the price of oil increased. Representative Gara
asked if the rebate program would also be available for
those who go off wood. Ms. Wnters indicated that had not
been t hought through.

8:54:38 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if the borough has policies pronoting
information that wood is available in sone public areas. M.
Wnters replied there was no policy, but in road accessible
borough |ands sone areas have been opened up for | ocal
ti mber harvest.

8:55:40 AM

Representative Fairclough asked if +there was a state
assessor online. Co-Chair Stoltze responded there was not.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 03/13/09 8:35 A M



8:55:51 AM

Representative Fairclough remarked that when other cities
take tax credits against property taxes the comunity is
adversely affected by student reinbursenment calculations,
depending on if the state assessor accepts that credit and
how it is applied. She referred to a tax credit in Anchorage
for religious organizations and how sone of these credits
adversely inpact the student rate. She inquired if that had
been considered in this legislation. Ms. Wnters remnarked

that this tax credit wll not affect their education
f undi ng.
8:57:25 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if Steve van Sant, the State
Assessor, attended the recent Al aska Muinicipal League event
(copy on file). Ms. Wnters replied she had not participated
in the neeting, therefore she did not know who attended.

8:57:47 AM

Representative Kelly asked if wood boilers qualify under
this bill. Ms. Wnters replied it could be investigated, but
she not sure how it would be handl ed. Representative Kelly
wanted nore clarification if wood boilers would qualify.

9:00:10 AM

Representative Austerman felt this bill was witten so that
any community in Alaska who wanted to change their air
quality could develop any nmethod they wanted. He asked if
that was a correct interpretation

9:01: 05 AM

Ms. Lidster stated in HB 121, page 1, line 12-13, that “a
credit may be granted under this section and to property
located in areas that do not neet air quality standards
required by federal or state law or regulation.” She did not
know how far that extended, but it could be researched.
Representative Austerman asked if DEC could answer the
guesti on.

9:01: 50 AM

Ms. Edwards replied that three conmmunities have air quality
probl ens: Fairbanks, Anchorage, and Juneau. Representative
Austerman questioned if this bill was specific to those
three comunities. Ms. Edwards remarked she coul d not answer
that question. Co-Chair Stoltze asked if any conmunity,
ot her than the Fairbanks North Star Borough, advocated this
| egi slation. Ms. Lister reported she had no contact with any

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 03/13/09 8:35 A M



ot her community. Representative Austerman asked if DEC coul d
provide this information.

9:03:10 AM

Ms. Edwards replied she would work with the bill sponsor and
the borough to obtain an answer. Representative Austerman
asked if DEC sets the standards. M. Edwards declared that
air quality standards are set by the federal Environnental
Protection Agency, and then the state adopts the federa
standards. Representative Austerman asked if the standards
had been adopted. Ms. Edward replied they are in the process
of adopting them

9: 03: 58 AM

Representative Kelly agreed that the PM2.5 problem in
Fairbanks is real in the core area, but the EPA extended the
area to cover all the way to the base of the Al aska Range
where no human |ives. He wondered if Fairbanks had been able
to get a reduction of this area. Ms. Lister replied she had
not been given information that the area had been reduced.
Ms. Edwards remarked that the DEC was successful in reducing
t he original EPA boundary. The boundary does not include the
flats south of the river, Ei elson Air Force Base, and the
training areas to the east, but does include North Pole, Ft.
Wai nwi ght, downtown Fairbanks, Gold Stream valley out to
Ester, and Fox. Representative Kelly read on page 1, line 5-
8, “A nunicipality may, by ordinance, provide for an air
quality inmprovenent tax credit to offset a portion of the
property taxes due on property that, during the imediately
preceding tax year, has been inproved in a way that aids
inmproving the air quality in the municipality.” He wondered
how this would work to qualify for the tax credit. M.
Wnters replied that whatever year inprovenents are nmade

the follow ng year the tax credit would be applicable.

9:07:43 AM

Representative Kelly remarked that the EPA had cut in half
the PM2.5 per cubic liter from 65 to 30 which changed the
equation. He indicated his frustration with this decision
and questioned the nedical inpact studies in Fairbanks. M.
Wnters replied there was no study on the nedica
inplications, but she reported receiving nmany constituent
calls in the last year indicating a public perception that
air quality is a problem Representative Kelly remarked that
he did not believe the nunber change nade by the EPA nmade
any difference and he strongly believed that the EPA was
unr easonably hassling the comunity.

9:11:49 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 03/13/09 8:35 A M



Representative Fairclough asked the state assessor, now
online, how the credit would be calculated and if there
woul d be an adverse effect on school funding.

STEVE VAN SANT, STATE ASSESSOR, DEPARTMENT OF COVMERCE,
COVWMUNI TY AND ECONOM C DEVEL OPMENT testified Vi a
tel econference, that this bill goes to the tax side, not the
assessnent side. If the inprovenment is exenpted from the
assessnent for full value, the assessor’s office will add it
back in for school funding. This is a tax credit rather than
an assessnent exception. There will be tines that the credit
will probably be different from what an exenption woul d be
because the exenption mght not show up on the inprovenent
value. In reality it will not affect the full value since it
is on the tax side.

9:14:27 AM

Representative Austerman read HB 121, page 1, line 10-13
“The ordinance may |imt the availability of a credit to
sonme, but no all, types of inprovenents for which a credit

may be granted under this section and to property located in
areas that do no neet air quality standards required by
federal or state law or regulation.” H's interpretation
indicated that it would be open to all areas. Co-Chair
Stoltze asked Ms. Lidster if she needed that nmuch direction
and specificity froma state statute or just the ability to
grant the tax credit for Fairbanks.

9:15:44 AM

Ms. Lidster indicated that the |legislation was brought
forward for communities in nonattai nment. She could not say
how it would be interpreted beyond that. Representative
Austerman believed that the interpretation was open
according to his reading of the bill.

9:16:39 AM

Representative Gara believed this bill could be used for
communities that want to offer the tax credit, but not
telling communities what they have to do. He observed that
there is a novenent of individuals in some comunities that
want to use alternative energy, such as wind or solar. He
of fered that in hel ping Fairbanks, tax credits could al so be
avai l abl e for other communities should they w sh. He thought
a questionable part of the sentence on line 12 could have a
period inserted after the word “section.” This would allow
communities to offer the tax credit if they so choose.

9:18: 09 AM

Co- Chair Hawker asked if public testinony was concl uded. Co-
Chair Stoltze invited Kate Troll to testify.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 03/13/09 8:35 A M



9:18:30 AM

KATE TROLL, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA CONSERVATI ON ALLI ANCE
(ACA), declared that the Alaska Conservation Alliance, an
unbrella organi zation of 40 conservation groups, supports
the idea of allowing nmunicipalities to create an incentive
to help themreach their particulate matter standard of 2.5.
The bill is being driven by the needs of Fairbanks to reach
the attainnent area; Juneau is also in non-attainnent. M.
Troll believed HB 121 enables comunities to have one nore
tool to help neet air quality standards. She acknow edged
that if this tax credit option could be extended to other
communities to address their needs to reduce fuel
consunption or attain air quality challenges, then the ACA
supports this effort.

9: 20: 36_AM

Representati ve Foster asked if the conservation group |ist
is updated. Ms. Troll replied that it is updated regularly
and is available on the ACA website.

9:21: 08 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze announced public testinony cl osed.

9:21:32 AM

Representative Gara observed that all comunities should be
allowed to decide if they want to grant tax credits to their
citizens that want to reduce air pollution. Co-Chair Stoltze
noted that the bill would not pass out today as there were
so nmany questions and concerns. Representative Foster
i ndi cated his support for this bill.

9:22: 20 AM

Representative Austerman expressed his need to understand
the bill nore clearly. He believed the bill, as it currently
reads, could be interpreted both ways. He agreed wth
Representative Gara that there were nmany communities that

would like to be nore diversified in alternative energy
choi ces.

9:23: 03 AM

Representative Fairclough favored the bill passing fromthe

commttee at the appropriate tinme. She believed the existing
| anguage already allows the flexibility that Representative
Gara and Representative Austerman suggested. She referred to
page 1, line 12-13, “.areas that do not neet air quality
standards required by federal or state law or regulation.”

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 03/13/09 8:35 A M



She believed that because of the inclusion of “or” the bill
al ready conveys that it includes any conmunity.

9:23: 54 AM

Co-Chair Hawker questioned if there is any limt to the
amount of credit granted under the authority requested in
this bill.

9:24:12 AM

Ms. Lidster understood there to be no limt as witten. Co-
Chair Hawker agreed that is how the bill reads; there is no
[imt on the anobunt of credit. Co-Chair Hawker expressed his
concern that this bill permts any nunicipality to allow
credits; there is no constraint being applied. He noted that
HB 121 was witten for the immed ate needs of Fairbanks and
Juneau. The fact that the credit is unlimted and any action
taken by the nunicipal assenbly that would offer credits up
to unlimted anmount, is going to transfer the property tax
obligation from the beneficiaries to the rest of the
community. Co-Chair Hawker expressed his hesitancy and
concern passing a bill that would enpower his assenbly to
pass credit to special interests groups that would have to
be born by all the citizens residing in his district. Co-
Chair Hawker noted he understands Representative Kelly’s
dilenmma of not liking this idea, but acknow edged Fairbanks
is being backed into the wall by federal regulations.

9: 26: 26 AM

Co- Chair Hawker read on page 1, line 9, the “.anmbunt of the
credit shall be based on a percentage of the verifiable

costs.” He contended that the “shall” makes it a mandatory
nmet hodol ogy. He wondered if this inappropriately limts the
bill. He ascertained it mght be nore appropriate for the

credit to be on a unit cost option. This would protect the
community and other tax payers to whom the tax burden woul d
be transferred. The language is limting in that there does
not appear to be the ability to have a percent of variable
costs up to a certain anount.

9:28:16 AM

Co- Chair Hawker read page 1, line 10-13, “...The Odinance
may limt the availability of a credit to sone, but not all,
types of inprovenents for which a credit may be granted
under this section and to property located in areas that do
no nmeet air quality standards required by federal or state
law or regulation.” He believed that the term “my”
indicated that it was purely perm ssive, since it could al so
be read as “may not” and if so, everything beyond that was
irrelevant. The section “.to sone, but not all.” gives the
governnent conplete |atitude. Co-Chair Hawker suggested that

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 03/13/09 8:35 A M



in redrafting this legislation, he wanted to protect his
constituents fromthe transference of tax burdens to special
interest groups. The bill needs to be witten sinpler to
protect his conmunity.

9:30:12 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze agreed with Co-Chair Hawker
9:30:21 AM

Representati ve Foster believed there needs to be a nechani sm
to reward communities for nmaking air quality changes. He
acknow edged that different solutions for alternative energy
depend on the location of and variables wthin the
community. Co-Chair Stoltze believed Fairbanks woul d rather
not deal with this issue.

9:31: 34 AM

Representative Kelly commented that tax based erosion and
general applicability concerned him He wanted the bill to
stay narrow enough to prevent erosion of the |ocal tax base
which results in nore municipal revenue sharing pressures.
He expressed his fear that the bill could die on the floor
if it noved too far away from solving the specific problem
Representative Kelly indicated he had problens opening the
bill up beyond its original intent. He also did not want to
hear from constituents who believed they were being denied
conversions of their stove or have people playing ganes to
get the tax credit. He worried about the bill’s application
if local officials were enpowered to do things with the bill
t hat was never intended.

9: 35: 07 AM

Representative Kelly believed his constituents wanted to
“fight the calendar” on the EPA ruling until first-gas
arrives in Fairbanks. He asked Ms. Wnters if it was the
intention of the borough to do what they had to do to reach
conpliance or to “fight the cal endar.”

9: 35: 50 AM

Ms. Wnters observed that a report on how to reach
attai nment in Fairbanks nust be reported to the EPA within 3
years. Fairbanks is trying to reach attainnment to neet EPA
requirenents and deal with the health of residents, but not
hi nder any econom c devel opnent projects that mght bring
gas to Fairbanks.

9:37: 36 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 03/13/09 8:35 A M



Representative Kelly believed the borough could generate a
great deal of expense over a tenporary neasure that may | ook
like a joke when the gas pipeline is developed and in
general wuse. He recognized that the borough was being
t hreatened under a tineline and there was no easy sol ution.

9: 38: 34 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze invited all to work wth the bill’s
sponsors to try and get the bill back to the conmttee as
qui ckly as possi bl e.

HB 121 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 9:39 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 03/13/09 8:35 A M



